
MYRTLE CREEK CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

MYRTLE CREEK COUNCIL CHAMBER 

AGENDA PACKET 07/18/2023 

All city public meetings are being digitally recorded for sound and video camera surveillance. 

The City Council of the City of Myrtle Creek will meet on Tuesday, July 18, 2023 at 5:30 PM in the 
Myrtle Creek Council Chamber, 207 NW Pleasant Street, Myrtle Creek, Oregon. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting to the City Recorder at 541-863-3171. 

The City Council reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and 
discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the study session and or/meeting. 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – 5:30 PM 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should complete a Public Comment Form and give it to the City 
Recorder. Public Comment Forms are located at the entrance to the meeting place. Anyone commenting on a 
subject not on the agenda will be called upon during the “Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items” section of the 
agenda. Comments pertaining to specific agenda items will be taken at the time the matter is discussed by the City 
Council. 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Presentations – Items that do not require immediate council action, such as
presentations, discussions of potential future action items.

4. Consent Agenda – Requires a motion
The consent agenda consists of items of a repeating or routine nature considered under a single
action. Any Councilor may have an item on the consent agenda removed and considered
separately upon request.

Consent Agenda Part 1 – Requires a motion
4.1 Approval of minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting for June 20, 2023

Consent Agenda Part 2 – Requires a motion
4.2 Acknowledge receipt of Payroll & Claims Report for June 2023

Page 1 of 42



5. Department Reports 
 Items for discussion by the City Administrator and Department Heads as needed.  
 5.1     Planning/Community Development Report 
 5.2 Finance Officer Report 
 5.3 Police Department Report 
 5.4 Fire Department Report 
 5.5 Public Works Report 

6. Regular Agenda 
Citizens will be provided the opportunity to offer comments on action items after staff has given 
their report and if there is an applicant, after they have had the opportunity to speak. Action 
items are expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders, or ordinances. 
6.1  On Street Parking of Trailers 
6.2 Modified Cash Accounting 
6.3 Memorial Items Policy 
6.4 Park Commission Presentation Cover for Pickleball Court 
6.5 Millsite Park Nature Trail Expansion Concept 

7. Citizens Heard on Non-Agenda Items 

8. City Administrator Report 

9. Mayor and Councilor – Committee Reports and Councilor Comments 

9. Executive Session  
The Myrtle Creek City Council may go into Executive Session. If an Executive Session is called 
to order, the appropriate ORS citation will be announced identifying the applicable statute. All 
discussions are confidential and those present may disclose nothing from the Session. 
Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS 
192.660 but must not disclose any information discussed. No Executive Session may be held for 
the purpose of taking any final action or making any final decision. Executive Sessions are 
closed to the public. 

11. Adjournment 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 42



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
June 20, 2023 
Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

DATE:    June 20, 2023 

PLACE: Council Chambers, 207 NW Pleasant St., Myrtle Creek, Oregon 

PRESIDING OFFICER: Mayor Matthew Hald 

COUNCILORS PRESENT: Councilors: Robert Chaney, Sr., Luke Dillon, Diana Larson, Susan 
Harris, Bill Burnett 

COUNCILORS ABSENT:  

 A quorum was present throughout the meeting. 

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: City Administrator Lonnie Rainville, City Recorder Joanna 
Bilbrey, Finance Officer Lesley Hiscocks, Police Chief Jonathan  
Brewster, Fire Chief Manie Pires 

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Matthew Hald called the June 20, 2023 meeting to order at 
5:30 PM 

PUBLIC PRESENTATION 
No public presentations. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Parts I & II 

Motion was made by Councilor Burnett and seconded by Councilor Harris to accept Consent Agenda 
Items Parts I & II. Discussion: None 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Planning Department 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville submitted the Planning Department Report into record as written. A 
question was asked on the status of the Riverside Lift Station. We are currently waiting on parts to come 
in. The project should be completed by February 2024. 

Page 3 of 42



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
June 20, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Finance Report 
Finance Officer Lesley Hiscocks submitted the Finance Report into record as written.  

Police Department 
Police Chief Jonathan Brewster submitted the Police Department report into record as written.  

Fire Department 
Fire Chief Manie Pires submitted the Fire Report into record as written. The Chief shared that they had 
29 teams play in their golf tournament and it went really well.  

Public Works 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville submitted the Public Works Report into record as written.  

Resolution 23-11 – A Resolution Imposing Ad Valorem Taxes and Categorizing the Tax Levy as 
Provided in ORS 310.060(2). 
Motion was made by Councilor Harris to approve Resolution 23-11 – A Resolution Imposing Ad 
Valorem Taxes and Categorizing the Tax Levy as Provided in ORS 310.060 (2). Motion seconded by 
Councilor Dillon. Discussion: no discussion followed 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
Myrtle Creek Rural Fire District Contract 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville presented the new Intergovernmental Agreement Between the City 
of Mytle Creek and Myrtle Creek Rural Fire Protection District.  

Motion was made by Councilor Harris to approve the 2023-2026 Intergovernmental Agreement between 
the City of Myrtle Creek and the Myrtle Creek Rural Fire Protection District. Motion was seconded by 
Councilor Burnett. Discussion: no discussion followed 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

Umpqua Golf Management LLC Contract 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville presented the new agreement for Professional/Presonnal Services 
with Umpqua Golf Management LLC. This new agreement is being changed from a land lease to a 
contract for professional services. This will remove the property taxes from the land which are about 
$12,000 a year.  

Motion was made by Councilor Dillon to approve the contract for Professional and Personal Services 
between the City of Myrtle Creek and Umpqua Golf Management LLC. Motion was seconded by 
Councilor Harris. Discussion: no discussion followed 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

ON Street Parking tabled to July 

Page 4 of 42



Myrtle Creek City Council Minutes 
June 20, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 

CITIZENS HEARD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Sproul-Dillon – 745 NE Lillian, Myrtle Creek 
Julie came to discuss with Council about the Rodeo Rabbit Scramble. She shared about the issues that 
rabbits cause homeowners and the treatment of the rabbits. She would like to know what the City can do 
or if Council has recommendations for her to proceed. She asked if Council as a body could possibly 
write a letter to the Rodeo regarding the Rabbit Scramble and the issues that residents have. 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 
City Administrator Lonnie Rainville shared that the City has launched a Facebook page, City of Myrtle 
Creek Government. We will be using this to push information out to the public. The City Administrator 
has started meeting with the City Administrators from Riddle, Canyonville, and Glendale. They will 
start meeting every other month to discuss local issues specific to south Douglas County. The City 
Administrator also shared the new insurance rates for the 2023/2024. The City has an open position for a 
Parks/Public Works employee. Interviews are being conducted on Friday, June 23, 2023 and we hope to 
have the new employee on staff in July. The Brewfest and the City Wide Yard Sale are both going on 
this weekend.  

MAYOR AND COUNCILOR – COMMITTEE REPORTS and COUNCILOR COMMENTS 
Councilor Dillon shared that he has almost completed the testing for his CPA license.  

Executive Session called at 6:31 p.m. 

Executive Session closed at 6:59 p.m. 

Motion made by Councilor Chaney to offer the City Administratror a 4% cola and 3%  merit which is 
within the current contract and is consistent with other non-union staff effective July 1, 2023. Motion 
seconded by Councilor Larson. Discussion: no discussion followed 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Matthew Hald adjourned the regular meeting of the City Council for June 20, 2023 at 7:02 PM. 

      

     ______________________________ 
     Matthew Hald, Mayor 

wiAttest: 

______________________________ 
Joanna Bilbrey 
City Recorder 

Page 5 of 42



CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK      
PAYROLL AND CLAIMS      

JUNE ~~ 2023      
       

        
FUN

D 
FUND          

# DESCRIPTION BILLS P/R Transfers TOTAL  
       

100 GENERAL FUND     197,132.56   21,770.75       218,903.31   
200 SEWER FUND       89,176.83   35,420.24       124,597.07   
210 SEWER CONSTRUCTION     191,862.38               -         191,862.38   
250 WATER FUND       22,788.08   23,503.53         46,291.61   
255 METER DEPOSITS                  -                 -                      -     
260 WATER CONSTRUCTION        9,500.00               -            9,500.00   
280 AIRPORT FUND        4,564.52               -            4,564.52   
300 STREET FUND       50,160.78     9,289.70         59,450.48   
330 STORM WATER FUND           336.00               -               336.00   
420 SEWER EFFLUENT LOAN                  -                 -                      -     
430 WWTP REPAY FUND                  -                 -                      -     
450 WTP E RES DEBT FUND                  -                 -                      -     
500 PARK DEVELOPMENT        1,903.46               -            1,903.46   
550 RV PARK FUND        1,253.98               -            1,253.98   
580 CAPITAL PROJECTS                   -                 -                      -     

       
 TOTAL ALL FUNDS     568,678.59   89,984.22             -        658,662.81   

 

Page 6 of 42



Page 7 of 42



Page 8 of 42



Page 9 of 42



Page 10 of 42



Page 11 of 42



Page 12 of 42



Page 13 of 42



Page 14 of 42



Page 15 of 42



Page 16 of 42



Page 17 of 42



Page 18 of 42



Page 19 of 42



Page 20 of 42



Page 21 of 42



Page 22 of 42



Page 23 of 42



Page 24 of 42



Page 25 of 42



Page 26 of 42



Community Development Department 
Monthly Report 

July 18, 2023 

January General Planning Statistics: 
1 Fence Permit 

2 Planning Clearances  

 Solar installation 

 Remodel 

 

Significant Planning Activities: 
 

Derelict Hospital Building 

Owner did not make payment within the required time period.  We have 
completed the lien and recorded it with the County Clerks Office.  There is 
nothing else at this time that the City needs to do.    

 

Klimback Ln. Sub-Division 

Pacific Power has completed their engineering plan for the power build out and 
are in the scheduling phase to complete construction of the power build out in 
the subdivision.  The contractor is starting storm water upgrades along 
Klimback. 

 

Tessia’s Hill Estates Sub-Division 

Knife River continues to make significant progress on the excavation work for 
the new sub-division.  Phase 1 of the stormwater connection is complete.  Phase 
2 will be put in when the streets are put in. They excavated to rough in the street 
and cul-de-sac.  Sewer line work will be starting next week.   They are 
continuing with cut and fill of the property. 

Page 27 of 42



 
 
 
              

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
2022-2023 Balances as of 06/30/2023 - 100% of Fiscal Year 

Comparison - Actual to Budgeted 
    Add Total Minus    
   Carryover Revenues Revenue Expenses    
    7/1/2022   & Carryover   % % 
BUDGETED  ESTIMATED   YR TO DATE YR TO DATE Revenue Expend 

AMOUNT FUND CARRYOVER REVENUE REVENUES EXPENSES    

4,160,995 100 GENERAL FUND 1,409,490 4,193,999 5,603,489 4,194,024 134.7% 100.8% 
2,064,985 200 SEWER FUND 339,728 2,191,078 2,530,806 2,189,770 122.6% 106.0% 
2,286,871 

210 SEWER 
CONSTRUCTION 2,094,635 2,208,817 4,303,452 951,296 188.2% 41.6% 

1,852,049 250 WATER FUND 564,484 1,848,360 2,412,844 1,847,124 130.3% 99.7% 
2,287,672 

260 WATER 
CONSTRUCTION 2,085,158 2,316,452 4,401,610 26,317 192.4% 1.2% 

113,559 280 AIRPORT FUND 85,309 101,213 186,522 101,213 164.3% 89.1% 
1,381,809 300 STREET FUND 879,539 1,250,766 2,130,305 1,250,690 154.2% 90.5% 

45,160 330 STORMWATER FUND 30,060 45,377 75,437 111 167.0% 0.2% 
1,247,600 430 WWTP REPAYMENT 253,967 1,404,842 1,658,809 1,246,214 133.0% 99.9% 

555,190 450 WTP REPAYMENT 246,415 561,322 807,737 561,322 145.5% 101.1% 
379,481 500 PARK DEVELOPMENT 333,281 399,386 732,667 399,386 193.1% 105.2% 
118,500 550 RV PARK  0 92,210 92,210 92,210 77.8% 77.8% 

1,114,672 580 CAPITAL PROJECTS 914,132 1,182,934 2,097,066 1,182,934 188.1% 106.1% 
              

17,608,543 TOTALS 9,236,198 17,796,755 27,032,953 14,042,612 153.5% 79.7% 
                

 
This chart shows our revenue and expenses for the month of June.  As you might 
notice the revenue amounts have gone way up, this is because we have transferred 
all available funds from End fund balance into networking capitol which makes it 
appear as revenue.   

 
                                                                          

 
 
 

Lesley Hiscocks, Finance Officer 

 

City of Myrtle Creek 
207 NW Pleasant, P.O. Box 940,  Myrtle Creek, OR 97457 

 Phone 541-863-3171,  Fax 541-863-6851 

Page 28 of 42



CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
  P.O. BOX 940 / 215 NW PLEASANT ST 

MYRTLE CREEK, OR  97457 
BUSINESS:  541-863-5222 FAX:  541-863-6690 

 

JUNE 2023 REPORT 
Rodeo 
The police department led the parade for the South Douglas Rodeo and also provided 
security at the event.  The rodeo drew large crowds each day with no issues that law 
enforcement had to address during the two-day event.  
 
Training 
Officers did the third and final phase of the pursuit and high-risk traffic stop training at the 
fairgrounds.  Officers were engaged in mock vehicle pursuits where spike strips were 
deployed, and high-risk traffic stops were performed.  This is very important training for 
officers to do periodically as this is something officers are not being tasked with every day 
but do get involved in these situations a few times each year.   
 
Community Event 
The police department participated in the community event near the library that was 
sponsored by ADAPT.  Officer Michael Oneslager put on a bike rodeo for the kids at the 
event.  The kids were able to go through a course on their bikes learning how to hand signal, 
properly stop, and look both ways before proceeding.  After the course, kids were given 
stickers and safety pamphlets on how to properly fit a bicycle helmet.  Officer Oneslager did 
an outstanding job organizing the bike rodeo.  Below is a picture of Officer Oneslager at the 
bike event.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Calls for Service 
Officers from the Myrtle Creek Police Department responded to 235 calls for service and 
made 24 arrests during June of 2023. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Chief Jonathan Brewster 
Myrtle Creek Police 

Page 29 of 42



              2023 MCFD Call Responses
Call Type Ja

n
Feb

M
arc

h
April

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

Aug
Se

pt
O

ct
Nov

Dec
TO

TAL

MVA-Non Injury 3 1 1 2 2 2 11
MVA - UTL 1 1 2
MVA - Injury 2 1 1 4
MVA - Fatal 1 1 2
MVA - Cancelled 1 1 3 4 2 11
Medical Aid 5 7 3 6 11 6 38
Medical Aid - Cancelled 1 1 1 3
Public Assist 1 1 2
Public Assist-Lift Assist 9 7 10 10 4 10 50
Public Safety 1 2 2 1 1 7
Unattended Death 1 1 2
Fire/Carb Alarm 1 1 1 3
False Alarm Activation 1 1
Alarm Testing 1 1
Flue Fire 1 1
Fire - Vehicle 1 1 1 3
Fire 1 1 2
Fire - Illegal Burn 1 2 4 2 9
Fire - Controlled Burn 2 3 1 6
Fire - UTL 1 1 1 1 3 6 13
Fire-Nat Cover 1 2 3
Fire - Cancelled 1 2 2 5
Structure Fire 2 4 1 2 1 3 13
Structure Fire - Cancelled 2 2 4 2 2 12
Structure Fire -Commercial 2 2 1 1 6
Over Bank Rescue 0
Water Rescue 0
Water/Over Bank-Cancelled 1 1

        TOTAL 33 32 29 38 36 43 0 0 0 0 0 0 211

Page 30 of 42



Public Works and Parks  
July 18, 2023 Activities Report  

• Streets 
o 15 Utility Locates in the month of June 
o Weekly downtown garbage collection 
o Regular street sweeping 
o Continued weekly street maintenance focusing on pothole repairs  
o Vegetation removal in Right of ways 

 
• Sewer 

o Weekly lift station maintenance 
o Underground Tech continued Manhole maintenance to address the City’s 

I&I 
o Right-of-way Mowing and Clearing 

 
• Water 

o 22 delinquent water turnoffs in June 
o Monthly meter reads 
o 4 service line repair 

 214 Sandy Terrace 
 Leon Ct 
 206 Division St 
 450 SW Hurst St 

 
• Parks and Public Building Department 

o Monthly park maintenance 
o Finished irrigation work for the food truck court seating area 
o Conducted backflow inspections at City owned properties 
o Daily chemical check at the pool 

 
• Water Treatment 

o South Umpqua River Plant produced 27.414 (MG) - 30 days of operation 
o Continue to run at a production rate of 900 GPM  

 
 

Page 31 of 42



• Wastewater Treatment 
o Total effluent flow to the South Umpqua River = 0 M.G.  
o Total Effluent flow to the M.C. Golf Course = 16.272 M.G.  
o Myrtle Creek influent flow = 7.071 M.G.  
o Tri-City Influent Flow = 8.163 M.G.  
o Total Effluent  = 16.272 M.G.  

 

Page 32 of 42



 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: RV On Street Parking 
Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Police E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    
 
Issue before the Council:   

 
How to address RV on street parking for extended periods of time. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
It is the staff’s recommendation to proactively address the RVs that are parked along roadways for 
extended periods of time.   
 
Background:   
 
There has been discussion about the number of RV’s that are parked along city streets that appear to 
have been parked for an extended period of time.  In the past, these RV’s have been addressed only 
when there is a complaint filed.  The discussion with council will be to get direction on taking a more 
proactive approach to addressing RV’s that have been parked on city rights-of-way for an extended 
period of time.  
   
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
No cost at this time.  
 
Council Options: 
 
City Council can support staff in taking a more proactive approach to addressing RVs parked along 
rights-of way within the city. 
 
City Council can direct staff to continue to address RVs based on community complaint. 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
NA 

Page 33 of 42



 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Modified Cash Accounting 
Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Finance E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    
 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Approval to move to Modified Cash form of Accounting. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
It is the recommendation of staff to move to a Modified Cash form of Accounting from Modified 
Accrual. 
 
Background:   
 
See attached report from the City Finance  
   
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
Undetermined cost saving 
  
 
Council Options: 
 
City Council can approve to move to modified cash form of accounting. 
 
City Council can take no action resulting in the city continuing to use the Modified Accrual form of 
accounting. 
 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to approve the city to move from a modified accrual basis of accounting to 
modified cash accounting.  

Page 34 of 42



 
 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council, 
 
The Government Accounting Standard Board (GASB) has issued a new standard for 
accounting practices for entities that use an accrual-based accounting system. The new 
standard will require all subscription-based IT products to be compiled and their value 
measured for the subscription term. Amortization of the subscription’s liability would 
then have to be reported during each fiscal year. The City of Myrtle Creek currently uses 
an accrual-based accounting system.  
 
We have met with our auditing team at Umpqua Valley Financial to review what this 
process will look like for the City of Myrtle Creek and for their recommendations for 
moving forward. The recommendation from Umpqua Valley Financial is for the City to 
move to a modified cash-based accounting system to avoid the new requirements. 
 
Before we make a decision on switching our accounting practices, the auditor suggested 
that we reach out to a company called Debtbook that compiles the information required 
by GASB 96 and review with them what the new requirements for accrual-based 
accounting would be for the City if we were to remain with our current accounting 
system. During our meeting with Debtbook we were informed that the cost of their 
services would run a minimum of $10,000. Our audit team would also require more time 
to compile and review the information provided to them by Debtbook, which would 
increase our audit costs.  
 
We did speak with Umpqua Valley Financial about what it would look like for the City if 
we switched to a modified cash-based accounting system. They informed us that they do 
work with other cities who use this accounting system and there have not been any issues. 
We also reached out to Business Oregon to verify that the City’s ability to receive a loan, 
if needed, would not be affected negatively if we were to switch to a modified cash-based 
accounting system. Business Oregon could not see any reason that future loans would be 
affected by switching the accounting system used. 
 
The options presented include staying with the accrual-based accounting system that the 
City currently uses and either contracting with Debtbook to compile the data needed or 
uses staff resources to compile the information in house, or to switch the City accounting 
to a modified cash-based accounting system. If the City were to stay with the accrual-
based accounting system, there would additional costs to the City both from Debtbook 
and from the auditing process. 
 

CITY OF MYRTLE CREEK 
P.O. BOX 940, 207 NW PLEASANT ST., MYRTLE CREEK OR 97457 

(541) 863-3171   FAX (541) 863-6851 
www.cityofmyrtlecreek.com 

 

Page 35 of 42



From the information gathered and the time spent speaking with the auditor I feel 
confident in following Umpqua Valley Financials’ recommendation to move the City to a 
modified cash-based accounting system. This option will save a substantial amount of 
money and staff time. I believe that with working with the auditor and staff we can make 
this a seamless change. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Lesley Hiscocks 
Finance Officer 
 

Page 36 of 42



 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Memorial Items in Parks 
Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Parks E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    
 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Approval of policy to allow donated memorial items to be placed in City parks. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
It is city staff’s recommendation to approve the attached policy, exhibit A, a policy allowing for the 
placement of donated memorial items in City parks. 
 
Background:   
 
At the May 9, 2023, Parks Commission meeting it was discussed to potentially change the city policy 
that allow donated memorial items in City parks.  At the June 13, 2023, Parks Commission meeting 
staff presented a draft of a potential policy for donated memorial items for the Commission to review. 
At the July 11, 2023, Parks Commission meeting the policy was discussed and approved to move to 
City Council with the recommendation for the policy to be approved.  
   
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
No cost  
 
Council Options: 
 
City Council can approve the policy as drafted. 
 
City Council can approve the policy with edits. 
 
City Council can take no action resulting in the policy not being changed and continue to not allow in 
memorials in parks. 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to allow donated memorial items to be placed in city parks in accordance with 
the presented policy.  

Page 37 of 42



City of Myrtle Creek 
207 NW Pleasant St, PO Box 940, Myrtle Creek OR 97457 
Phone: (541)-863-3171 ext. 242 

     
 

Placement of Donated Items/Memorials on 
City Property  

Policy 
Summary: 

This policy shall outline the procedure for donated items and memorial to be placed on City 
owned property.  The policy shall also outline the responsibili�es, obliga�ons and 
responsibili�es the City will have regarding donated property and memorials. 

City Considera�on or request: 

The city will consider on a case-by-case basis requests from a person or group to place a 
donated item on city property.  Donated property will only be considered if the approved 
procedure is followed, and the donated property meets  the standards for construc�on or 
species in the case of tree or shrub. 

Benches shall be made of wood and shall be contoured or flat style pedestal outdoor bench.  
Alterna�ve bench material may be approved on a case-by-case basis by the city parks 
commission.  

Trees or shrubs to be planted  in City facili�es must be approved by the Parks and Building 
Coordinator as well as the Parks Commission.  Trees or shrubs must fit in with the exis�ng 
landscape scheme of facili�es.   

Other decora�ve art features or equipment may also be considered on a case-by-case basis and 
must be approved by the Parks Commission.   

Plaques may be placed with the donated items and not as a free stand-alone feature.  Plaques 
set in a feature may be no larger than 8 ½ x 11 inches.  Plaques affixed to benches may not 
exceed 2 ½ x 6 inches.  Plaque design must be approved by the Parks commission. 

No Guarantee of Approval: 

Considera�on of an applica�on by the City does not guarantee approval.  The City reserves the 
right to approve or deny any applica�on for placement of donated items. 

 

Page 38 of 42



Addi�onal Agency Approval: 

The Parks Commission and City Administrator will determine any addi�onal agencies, if any 
must review an applica�on grant approval for placement of items. 

Disposi�on of Donated Items: 

The Parks Commission shall determine the useful life of a donated item and shall determine the 
disposi�on of the items if the item is damaged or reaches its end of life span. 

No Guarantee or Obliga�on: 

The City cannot guarantee the security of items donated and placed on public property.  
Placement on public property does not obligate the City to repair or replace items. 

Removal of Items: 

The Parks Commission or City Council has the authority  to approve the permanent removal of 
donated items. The City Administra�on has the authority to temporarily remove donated items. 

Donor repair or Replacement of Items:   

If the City elects to not repair or replace damaged items, the City may atempt to contact the 
original donor to be given the opportunity to repair or remove the item. Repair or replacement 
of an items does not obligate  the city to placement of an item.  

Damaged items: 

Damaged items which are not repaired, replaced or recovered by donors within the determined 
�me period given by the City Administrator may be discarded at the discre�on of the Parks 
Commission. 

Procedures: 

• Applica�on for Placement of Donate Item on Public Property is completed and 
submited to the City Administrator. 

• City Administrator reviews for completeness 
• City Administrator discusses applica�on with Parks and Buildings Coordinator to get sign 

off on donated item and loca�on of placement.  
• Applica�on is presented to the Parks Commission at the next regularly scheduled Parks 

Commission mee�ng. 
• If the Parks Commission approves any other agencies iden�fied as needing to give 

approval will be sent applica�on materials with request for approval. 
• If all outside agencies, if any, approve the applica�on the Parks and Buildings 

Coordinator will be no�fied to work with the donor on obtaining the dona�ng item and 
placing it in the approved loca�on.   

• All informa�on pertaining to the donated item will be retained by the Parks and Building 
Coordinator with copies given to the City Recorder. 

 

Page 39 of 42



 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Evergreen Park Tennis and Pickleball Pavilion 
Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Parks E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    
 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Approval of concept and to begin design and cost analysis for Evergreen Park tennis and pickleball 
pavilion.  
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends the approval of the concept to construct a pavilion to cover the tennis and pickleball 
court(s) at evergreen park and to begin design work, develop project cost, and identify potential 
funding which would include City funds as well as potential grants.   
 
Background:   
 
At the June 13, 2023 Parks Commission meeting Commissioner Linda Connell brought forward the 
concept of constructing a cover over the Evergreen Park tennis and pickleball courts.  This would 
allow for year-round play on the court(s).  The Commission approved to move the concept of the 
pavilion to City Council with the recommendation to approve design and cost analysis for the building 
and to begin looking for potential grant funding to assist with construction costs.    
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
None for this phase of the project. 
 
Council Options: 
 
The council can approve to move forward with design and cost development for a tennis and pickleball 
court pavilion to be constructed at Evergreen Park. 
 
The council can take no action and the project will not move forward. 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to approve the initial concept of the Evergreen Park tennis and pickleball 
court(s) pavilion and allow city staff and the Park Commission to begin design work and develop 
cost estimates for the project. 

Page 40 of 42



 

Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report 
 

Agenda item: Millsite Park Nature Trail 
Meeting Date: July 18, 2023 Primary Staff Contact:  Lonnie Rainville 
Department: Parks E-Mail: lrainville@myrtlecreek.org 
Secondary Dept.:  Secondary Contact:   
    
 
Issue before the Council:   

 
Approval of concept and to begin design and cost analysis for Millsite Park walking paths.  
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends the approval of the concept to expand the Millsite Park walking paths and allow 
staff to begin design work and develop project cost and identify potential funding which would include 
City funds as well as potential grants.   
 
Background:   
 
There is currently a .7 mile trail that runs along the perimeter of Millsite field.  City Parks staff have 
been removing blackberries along the bank west of the RV Park and have opened up areas that would 
allow for the expansion of pedestrian trails along Myrtle Creek.  The trail would cross under the 
railroad tracks at the south end of the disc golf course and parallel the South Umpqua River to the 
bridge entering town. It would then circle back, cross back under the railroad tracks on the north end of 
the disc golf course, and then connect back into the existing trail. This would add approximately half a 
mile of new trail.  Attachment A is an aerial map depicting the existing trail and the potential new trail.   
 
The proposal was presented to the Parks Commission on June 13, 2023.  The Commission voted to 
move the issue to City Council with the recommendation for Council to approve moving the project 
forward. 
   
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
 Engineering costs estimated at no more than $5,000. 
 
Council Options: 
 
Council can approve to move forward with design and cost development for the new Millsite Park 
walking paths. 
 
Council can take no action and the project will not move forward. 
 
Potential Motion: 
 
I make the motion to approve the initial concept of the Millsite Park walking path expansion 
project and allow city staff to begin design work and develop cost estimates for the project. 

Page 41 of 42



M
ill

si
te

 P
ar

k 
Pu

bl
ic

 T
ra

il 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

Co
nc

ep
t

¯
0

0.
02

0.
04

0.
01

M
ile
s

LE
G

EN
D

Cu
rr

en
t 

Tr
ai

l
Lo

op

Pr
op

os
ed

 T
ra

il
Lo

op

Page 42 of 42


	July 18, 2023 City Council Agenda
	June 20, 2023 City Council Minutes
	PUBLIC PRESENTATION No public presentations.

	Payroll and claims June 2023
	Check by date June 2023
	Community Development Department July 18 2023 Report
	2022CouncilLetter
	June 2023 Police Report
	Copy of 2023 MCFD Response Report
	Sheet1

	Public Works 07-18-2023 Report
	RV on street parking
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: RV On Street Parking


	Modified Cash Staff Report
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Modified Cash Accounting


	Finance Officer Recommendation to move to Modified Cash Accounting (2)
	Memorial Items in parks
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Memorial Items in Parks


	Placement of Donated Item Policy
	Evergreen Park tennis and pickle ball court  pavilion staff report
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Evergreen Park Tennis and Pickleball Pavilion


	Millsite Park Pathway Staff Report
	Myrtle Creek - City Council Agenda Report
	Agenda item: Millsite Park Nature Trail


	Millsite Trails



